COLUMBUS

Rural Nature. Urban Access.

City of Columbus
PUBLICATION NOTICE
Ordinance Publication Summary

An Ordinance Relating to and Regulating
Chapter 7A Amendment Commercial Design Standards

On July 26, 2023 at its regular meeting, the Columbus City Council adopted ordinance (No. 2023-02)
amending Chapters 7A of the City Code, to regulating commercial design standards adding language
clarifying color requirements, updating building material standards, reducing masonry requirements,
creating additional illumination standards, requiring minimum square footage for commercial buildings,
authorizing the Zoning Administrator to allow modifications to prior approved fences, screening, or
landscaping plans and housekeeping amendments. The full ordinance is available to the public for
inspection in the City Administrator’s Office located at 16319 Kettle River Blvd. NE, Columbus, MN
55025 and on the City’s Official website www.ci.columbus.mn.us. This title and summary of Ordinance
23-02 is published in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 412.191 subd. 4.

By order of the City Council
Elizabeth Mursko, City Administrator

Submitted to the Forest Lake Times on August 11, 2023.
Published in the Forest Lake Times August 17, 2023.
Posted August 11, 2023.

16319 Kettle River Boulevard, Columbus, MN 55025
651.464.3120 Twin Cities 651.464.5922 Fax

www.ColumbusNIN.com


http://www.ci.columbus.mn.us/

COLUMBUS

Rural Nature. Urban Access.

TO: Columbus Mayor & City Council Members

FROM: Carissa Kranz, Permit Coordinator & Grant Larson, Intern
DATE: August 1, 2023

RE: Building Permit Retention Policy

Background:
On December 7, 2004, the Township of Columbus had adopted a policy recommendation from

the Building Official at the time, Nick Schmitz, stating that the Township keep all commercial
building records for the life of the building and to keep all residential permits permanently, with
the understanding that any new single family home plans after 15 years would either be given
back to the current property owner if they wanted them or destroyed.

Grant Larson reached out to the LMC MemberLink and asked what other cities were
doing for building permit retention.
This is a summary of the responses we received:

e City of Little Falls — Follow State General Retention Schedule under PER
00600 and PER 00700 they keep Commercial permits permanently and
Residential permits 5 years after expiration. Population 9,094

» City of Princeton — Keeps all permits permanently. Keeping in mind, some of
the things that are usually attached to the building permit do have specific
retention requirements. Population 5,311

» City of Jackson — Keeps all permits permanently. Population 3,268

e City of Stockton — Keeps all permits permanently, only 250 households.
Population 809.

e City of Wahkon - Keeps all permits permanently, only takes up 1.5 cabinets.
Population 244

» City of West Concord - Keeps permits until our drawer is filled, and always
the minimum retention length, right now they have about 8 years of them.
They do keep floor plans (rolled plans) indefinity. Population 852

» City of Elk River — Follow State General Retention Schedule under PER 00600
and PER 00700, they keep Commercial permits permanently andiResidential
permits 5 years after expiration. Population 26,750

16319 Kettle River Boulevard, Columbus, MN 55025
651.464.3120 Twin Cities 651.464.5922 Fax

www.ColumbusNIN.com



Approved Columbus State General Records Retention Schedule

PER 02900 Plumbing Permits 2 years after expiration
BUI 01200 Plumbing Inspection Record | Life of property
PER 03000 Pool License 6 years after expiration
PER 03120 Sign Permit 2 years after expiration
BUI 01300 Sign Inspection Record Life of property
PER 01930 Heating, Ventilation, Air 2 years after expiration
Conditioning Permit
(Mechanical)
BUI 00800 Heating/Ventilation Permanent
Inspection Record
PER 00600 Building Permits — Permanent
Commercial
BUI 00200 Building Plans — Commercial, | 15 or until superseded
Industrial with complete set
PER 00700 Building Permits — 5 years after expiration
Residential
BUI 00300 Building Plans — Residential 1 year after completion
of project
BUI 00100 Building Inspection Reports — | 1 year
not final
BUI 00150 Building Inspection Records Life of property
—final
BUI 00400 Certificate of Occupancy Permanent
BUI 00410 Certificate of Survey Permanent

The State General Records Retention Schedule does not clearly list retention
periods for septic permits, septic inspection reports, septic as-builts, septic
certificate of completions or septic pumping permits.

City Staff Recommendations:

1. Keep the previously established policy of retaining all Commercial and Residential
building permits permanently and notifying property owners after a new single-family
home has been constructed for 15 years that they have the opportunity to pick up the
plan set or the City will be destroying them.

2. Keeping all septic related permits and documentation for the life of the property or until
superseded by a new septic permit.



Cit
y f Building Department
0 16319 Kettle River Blvd

Columbus, MN. 55025

C@]U mbug Telephone: (651) 464-3120

Building Plans and Permits Retention Policy
POL 04-02

Policy
It is required by the State of Minnesota that each city must receive, review, and

retain building permits, plans, and inspections for each new building, building
addition, or changes to a building. To remain in compliance with the State,
Columbus can adopt the same or a stricter retention schedule than the
recommendations laid out by the State through the MCFOA Records Retention
Committee.

Purpose
The purpose of this policy is to follow the MCFOA General Records Retention

Schedule for Minnesota Cities, ensuring that Columbus follows the State of
Minnesota guidelines while making certain that the City is maintaining records
for future reference. City Staff believes it is in the best interest of the city to retain
all Columbus building permits and therefore recommending keeping all
Commercial and Residential building permits and submittals permanently
except for new single family dwelling plan sets, those are to be released and/or
destroyed after 15 years. Itis also to get a formalized policy, as the previous
policy was in the form of City Council meeting minutes from 2004 (see attached).

Responsibility

The Permit Coordinator, with assistance from the Deputy Clerk shall determine
when building plans are to be released and/or destroyed per the approved
policy. The Permit Coordinator will notify property owners 15 years after the
expiration of a new residential single family dwelling permit that they will have
the opportunity to pick up a copy of said plan set or that the plans will be
destroyed.

1 POL 04-02 Revised
August 9, 2023



Adjustments Allowed
Staff are authorized to make recommendations to the City Council to update the
policy as needed.

Effective Date

This policy shall be effective immediately upon approval of the City Council.
Approved by the City Council of the City of Columbus on this 9t day of August,
2023.

Elizabeth Mursko, City Administrator

Jesse H. Preiner, Mayor

History:
2004-12-07 Initial Policy 04-02 approved

2023-08-09  Reviewed Policy 04-02 revised and approved

2 POL 04-02 Revised
August 9, 2023



oL D4-02
Memorandum

To: Town of Columbus Board members
CC: Elizabeth Mursko, Town Manager
From: Nick Schmitz, Building Official
Date: 12/7/2004

Re: Mandated retention schedule for building permits and plans

The State of Minnesota requires that all municipalities adopt by ordinance, a record retention
schedule for building permits, plans and inspection records. It is my recommendation that the Town
of Columbus keeps all commercial building records, including plans for the life of the building.
Commercial buildings often change from one occupancy to another. Due to commercial buildings
having different construction requirements for different occupancy classifications, it is important to
keep the building permits and plans for these buildings.

Residential buildings are not as complex as commercial buildings. Residential buildings usually stay
residential, and only have minor changes, if any. The State of Minnesota requires a one year retention
period for residential building plans. Due to the lack of room for filing, it is my recommendation that
we keep all residential plans for 15 years. After 15 years the current resident will be notified to see if
they would like to pick up the plans. If they are not interested, the plans would be discarded. All other
permit information would be kept permanently.

If you have any questions please call me.




included the plan that they used for the last 5 years as well as a listing of programs that they
would like rated for the 2005-2010 time frame.

It was suggested that we have Mursko provide some input based upon what she knows of the
Board and then give her recommendations to the Town Board for comment at the next meeting.
If we select a couple of key areas that would be good for our area, that could possibly change the
rating for these projects.

Motion (04-212) by Wallner to authorize Mursko to provide suggestions on the Potential
Community Development Activities worksheet for our next meeting. Second by Hefty. Motion
carried.

RESOLUTION 05-01

Resolution 05-01 is to establish fee schedules for the coming year. In 2004 there was some new
Legislation regarding fee schedules — January 1 is the standard effective date for changes to
planning and zoning fees. If fees are amended during the year, new fees would not apply to a
project for which application for final approval has already been submitted.

Fry asked if we have done a re-evaluation of our parkland dedication fees based on the new
development that has been going on. We did have a lot more plats this past year, so we can
certainly review that.

Building Official Schmitz has recommended that we adopt last year’s building permit fee
schedule with some minor changes as outlined in his memo to the Board dated 12-13-04. The
chart labeled Table No. 1-A (on page 49 of the Agenda) should be incorporated as the Building
Permit/Plan Review/Surcharge Fees schedule.

Motion (04-213) by Fry to adopt Resolution 05-01 establishing permit fees and service charges
to be collected by the Town of Columbus using the numbers that were provided by the Park
Board earlier in the meeting, including the 5 recommendations of the Building Official and also
including Table 1-A — Building Permit Fees and subject to review of the Parkland Dedication
fees based on recent subdivision activity. Second by Walsh. Votes as follows: Walsh — aye;
Hefty — aye; Fry — aye; Wallner — aye; Mettler — aye. Motion carried.

BUILDING DEPARTMENT RETENTION SCHEDULE

The State requires that we adopt a record retention schedule for building permits, plans and
inspection records. The Building Official recommends that we keep all commercial building
records for the life of the building. Due to lack of storage space, he recommends that after 15
years the current resident of a home be notified to see if they want to pick up the blueprints for
their home. If they are not interested the plans would be discarded at that point. All other
permit information would be kept permanently.

Motion (04-214) by Fry to adopt a retention schedule for building permits and plans as follows:
Commercial buildings - permanent for all information
Residential buildings — blueprints & plans — 15 years with notification to the property
owner by postcard at the end of that time and destruction of the plans if not claimed

TB - December 29, 2004 8
Columbus Township



Residential buildings — all information other than blueprints & plans — permanent
Second by Wallner. Votes as follows: Walsh — aye; Hefty — aye; Fry — aye; Wallner — aye;
Mettler — aye. Motion carried.

MEALS ON WHEELS & ACCAP REQUESTS

We have received requests from the Meals on Wheels Program and Anoka County Community
Action Program for a letter of support of their programs for CDBG funds. We do support these
programs, but we are vying for the CDBG funds against them.

It was felt that we can write a letter stating that we do support them.

Motion (04-215) by Fry to authorize staff to write letters of support to Meals on Wheels and
Anoka County Community Action. Second by Walsh. Motion carried.

ATTORNEY REPORT

Letter from Jay Brothers - Griffith stated that Jay Brothers is taking exception to the letter that
he wrote to them regarding code enforcement issues — specifically storage of piles of concrete.

He suggested that he and Mursko meet with them on-site following our next regular staff
meeting on January 6™ to see if we can come to some understanding on how they are gomg to
manage these materials. He also wants to look at the two other businesses that they cite in their
letter to see if they have comparable storage materials and if they are covered by permit. With a
direct meeting we would be giving them an opportunity to tell us what they are actually doing.

One of the major differences with this operation and other businesses that they cite is that they
are in two different zoning districts. There are more stringent rules and regulations in the
Commercial/Retail District. Even if the zoning has been changed since they began operation,
only the uses that were in existence at the time of permitting would be grandfathered. They
can’t add things that are outside the scope of their permit and say that they are doing it because
someone else is doing it.

Griffith will follow up on this and suggest a meeting with them on January 6.

Newspaper Articles on Email Meetings — Griffith stated that in response to some articles in the
newspaper regarding email meetings, he has updated his understanding of the Open Meeting
Law. There is no definitive case on whether emailing constitutes an open meeting violation, but
he would say that if a quorum of the Board are emailing on a particular subject, you are probably
violating the open meeting law. It doesn’t prevent one or two members having a discussion. It
is important even if it is only one or two members of the Board that the discussion not constitute
official action. He is providing this as information only. Ifthere is a concern he would suggest
not doing it.-

WALLNER REPORT

Wallner indicated that he will not be in attendance at the February ot meeting. He also
mentioned that both the Fire and Park Boards have meetings scheduled for January 20®. Should
he try to reschedule the Park Board meeting. Walsh indicated that he will attend the Park Board
meeting for Wallner.

TB - December 29, 2004 9
Columbus Township






























eleanor.hahn
Line

eleanor.hahn
Line






















AutoCAD SHX Text
Southeast corner of Sec. 15, A Found Cast Iron Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW 1/4  - SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
North line of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
West line of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
East line of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
South line of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWP. 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
RNG. 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 	11

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRALEY ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE DR. NE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Quarter corner of Sec. 15. A Found Cast Iron Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMP THREE ROAD NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Centerline of road as Traveled

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wetland Basin 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found 1" Iron Pipe with 1/2" Iron Pipe Inside

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found 1/2" Iron  Pipe W/Cap No. 20270

AutoCAD SHX Text
159TH AVE NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANOKA COUNTY RIGHT OF WAY PLAT NO. 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
(C.S.A.H. NO. 23)C.S.A.H. NO. 23))

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMP THREE ROAD NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
XINGU ST NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE DR. NE (C.S.A.H. NO. 23)(C.S.A.H. NO. 23)C.S.A.H. NO. 23))

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Quarter corner of Sec. 15. A Found Cast Iron Monument

AutoCAD SHX Text
KETTLE RIVER BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENTS ARE SHOWN THUS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING 20 FEET IN WIDTH ADJOINING STREET LINES, AND 10 FEET IN WIDTH ADJOINING LOT LINES, UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN ON THIS PLAT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
For the purposes of this plat, the South Line of the Southwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 15, Township 32, Range 22, Anoka County, Minnesota is assumed to have a bearing of North 89 degrees 24 minutes 15 seconds West.




AutoCAD SHX Text
Southeast corner of Sec. 15, Twp. 32, Rng. 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Driveway

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wetland  Basin 4

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANOKA COUNTY HIGHWAY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW 1/4 - SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
North line of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
West line of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
East line of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
South line of the SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. 15

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWP. 32

AutoCAD SHX Text
RNG. 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK 	11

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRALEY ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
Field Located Utilities

AutoCAD SHX Text
Utilities Based on Maps

AutoCAD SHX Text
Test Area: 7,139 Sq. Ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Test Area: 7,610 Sq. Ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Test Area: 15,234 Sq. Ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Test Area:  4,638 Sq.Ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Test Area: 9,831 Sq. Ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Test Area: 10,438 Sq. Ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Septic Mound

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Driveway

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Driveway

AutoCAD SHX Text
Test Area: 7,336 Sq. Ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
South Quarter corner of Sec. 15, Twp. 32, Rng. 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAMP THREE ROAD NE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Centerline of road as Traveled

AutoCAD SHX Text
IE=903.69

AutoCAD SHX Text
IE=904.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" CMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAY A. OLSON TRUSTEE PID NO. 15-32-22-44-0003

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATRICE DEGERSTROM PID NO. 15-32-22-34-0009

AutoCAD SHX Text
JON R AND PATRICIA J GRANGER PID NO. 15-32-22-34-0003

AutoCAD SHX Text
KARLA K. ERICKSON PID NO.15-32-22-34-0002

AutoCAD SHX Text
MARILYN M. IRWIN PID NO. 15-32-22-42-0004

AutoCAD SHX Text
KYSA M THILGEN PID NO. 15-32-22-42-0005

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
IE = 890.3 

AutoCAD SHX Text
IE = 890.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wetland

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wetland

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" Iron Pipe W/Broken Cap

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
Existing Building

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found 1" Iron Pipe with 1/2" Iron Pipe Inside

AutoCAD SHX Text
Found 1/2" Iron  Pipe W/Cap No. 20270

AutoCAD SHX Text
Wetland Basin 3

AutoCAD SHX Text
Alternate Test Area:5,466 Sq.Ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY PLAT NO. 3 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAKE DR. NE (C.S.A.H. NO. 23)(C.S.A.H. NO. 23)C.S.A.H. NO. 23))

AutoCAD SHX Text
ANOKA COUNTY HIGHWAY RIGHT-OF-WAY PLAT NO. 3  RIGHT-OF-WAY PLAT NO. 3  

AutoCAD SHX Text
Southwest corner of Sec. 15, Twp. 32, Rng. 22

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE AND UTILITY EASEMENTS ARE SHOWN THUS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRM ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUFFIX

AutoCAD SHX Text
PANEL No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMUNITY No.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE OF FIRM INDEX

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
0240

AutoCAD SHX Text
12/16/2015

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
270144

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEING 20 FEET IN WIDTH ADJOINING STREET LINES, AND 10 FEET IN WIDTH ADJOINING SIDE LOT LINES, UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN ON THIS PLAT.








ORDINANCE NO. 23-XX

CITY OF COLUMBUS
COUNTY OF ANOKA
STATE OF MINNESOTA

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 5 TO
REGULATE USE OF CANNABIS IN PUBLIC PLACES AS A PUBLIC NUISANCE
The City Council of the City of Columbus does ordain the following:

SECTION 1. Chapter 5 of the City Code is hereby amended to add Article 12 to regulate the
use of cannabis in public places as follows:

Section 5-1201. DEFINITIONS. For the purposes of this article the following definitions shall
govern unless the context clearly requires otherwise:

A. *“Cannabis product” has the meaning set forth in Minnesota Statutes, Section 342.01,
Subd. 20, as that section may be amended from time to time.

B. “Electronic smoking device” means any device that may be used to deliver any aerosolized
or vaporized substance to the person inhaling from the device, including, but not limited to, an e-
cigarette, e-cigar, e-pipe, vape pen, or e-hookah.

C. “Employer” means any person or nonprofit entity that retains the service of one or more
employees.

D. “Enclosed area” means all space between a floor and a ceiling that is bounded by walls,
doorways, or windows, whether open or closed, covering more than 50 percent of the combined
surface area of the vertical planes constituting the perimeter of the area. A wall includes any
retractable divider, garage door, or other physical barrier, whether temporary or permanent.

E. “Outdoor Dining Area” means any publicly or privately owned outdoor area, including
streets and sidewalks, that is available to or customarily used by the general public or an
employee, and that is designed, established, or regularly used for consuming food or drink.

F.  “Person” means any natural person, business, corporation, partnership, cooperative
association, personal representative, receiver, trustee, assignee, or any other legal entity.

G. *“Place of employment” means an area under the control of an employer that an employee or
the general public may enter in the normal course of operations, regardless of the hours of
operation, including work areas and construction sites.



H. “Public event areas” means any publicly or privately owned place used for an event open to
the general public, regardless of any fee or age requirement, including a farmers’ market, parade,
fair, or festival.

I.  “Public place” means any publicly or privately owned place that is open to the general
public, regardless of any fee or age requirement, including sidewalks, streets, parking lots,
plazas, shopping areas, stadiums, or sporting facilities.

J. “Recreational area” means any publicly or privately owned area, including streets and
sidewalks located within the area, that is open to the general public for recreational purposes,
regardless of any fee or age requirement. The term “Recreational Area” includes, but is not
limited to, facilities, parks, playgrounds, athletic fields, restrooms, beaches, picnic areas,
spectator and concession areas, golf courses, walking paths, gardens, hiking trails, bike paths,
riding trails, roller and ice-skating rinks, skateboard parks, amusement parks, zoos, and aquatic
areas.

K. *“Service area” means any publicly or privately owned area, including streets and sidewalks,
that is designed to be used or is regularly used by one or more persons to receive a service, wait
to receive a service, or to make a transaction, whether or not such service or transaction includes
the exchange of money. The term “service area” includes, but is not limited to, areas including or
within 25 feet of information kiosks, automatic teller machines (ATMS), service lines, bus stops
or shelters, or cab stands.

L. “Service lines” means an outdoor line in which one or more persons are waiting for or
receiving service of any kind, whether or not the service involves the exchange of money,
including but not limited to, ATM lines, concert lines, food vendor lines, mobile vendor lines,
movie ticket lines, and sporting event lines.

M. “Smoke” or “Smoking” means:

1. inhaling, exhaling, or burning, any cannabis product, whether natural or
synthetic;

2. carrying any lighted, heated, or activated cannabis product, whether natural or
synthetic, intended for inhalation; or

3. using an electronic smoking device or hookah.
N. “Unenclosed area” means any area that is not an enclosed area.

Section 5-1202. PROHIBITION OF USING CANNABIS PRODUCTS IN PUBLIC
AREAS.

A. Smoking or using a cannabis product is prohibited in the unenclosed areas of the following
places within the City:

1. Recreational areas;



2. Service areas;

3. Outdoor dining areas;
4. Places of employment;
5. Public event areas; or

6. Other public places.

B. Nothing in this article prohibits any person or employer with control over any property
from prohibiting smoking or using a cannabis product on any part of such property, even if
smoking or using a cannabis product is not otherwise prohibited in that area.

C. Nothing in this article shall prohibit use of a cannabis product in a private residence, on
private property, except private property open to the public, or within the premises of an
establishment or event licensed to permit on-site consumption.

Section 5-1203. SMOKE-FREE BUFFER ZONES.

Smoking in all unenclosed areas shall be prohibited within 25 feet from any area in which
smoking is prohibited under Section 5-1203.A of this article or by any other law. This
prohibition shall not apply to unenclosed areas of private residential property.

Section 5-1204. ENFORCEMENT.

A. No person or employer shall permit smoking or using a cannabis product in an area that is
under the control of that person or employer and in which smoking or using a cannabis product is
prohibited by this article or any other law.

B. City staff will communicate the requirements of this article to public event organizers. City
staff will also make periodic observations of recreational areas and other City property covered
by this article to monitor for compliance. Anyone found by City staff to be violating this article
will be reminded of its requirements and asked to comply before being subject to ejection from
the property.

C. A person or employer that has control of an area in which smoking or using a cannabis
product is prohibited by this article shall direct anyone who is smoking or using a cannabis
product to extinguish or stop using the cannabis product. If they do not stop using the cannabis
product, the person or employer shall refuse any service and shall immediately ask them to leave
the property. If the ejection is from a public event, it shall be for the duration of the public event.

D. No person or employer shall intimidate, threaten any reprisal, or effect any reprisal, for the
purpose of retaliating against another person who seeks to attain compliance with this article.

Section 5-1205. VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES.



A. Each refusal to comply with a request from City staff or Sherriff’s deputy to stop using a
cannabis product in violation of this article may be treated as a petty misdemeanor under
Minnesota law and to subject to a fine of up to three hundred dollars ($300).

B. Any violation of this article is hereby declared to be a public nuisance.

C. Any violation of this article may be remedied by a civil action brought by the city attorney,
including, but not limited to, administrative or judicial nuisance abatement proceedings, code
enforcement proceedings, and suits for injunctive relief.

D. Each instance of smoking or using a cannabis product in violation of this article shall
constitute a separate violation. For violations other than for smoking, each day of a continuing
violation of this article shall constitute a separate violation.

E. The remedies provided by this article are cumulative and in addition to any other remedies
available at law or in equity.

SECTION 2. Effective Date. This Ordinance was adopted by the Columbus City Council on
this day of , 2023 and shall become effective after its publication.

APPROVED:

By:

Jesse H. Preiner
Its: Mayor
ATTEST:

Elizabeth Mursko, City Administrator

4889-2284-0692, v. 1



ORDINANCE NO. 2023-

CITY OF COLUMBUS
COUNTY OF ANOKA
STATE OF MINNESOTA

AN INTERIM ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A STUDY AND
IMPOSING A MORATORIUM ON THE OPERATION OF CANNABIS
BUSINESSES WITHIN THE CITY OF COLUMBUS

The City Council of the City of Columbus ordains the following:

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS AND AUTHORITY.

(A)

(B)

(©)

(D)

The Minnesota Legislature recently enacted, and the Governor signed, 2023 Minnesota
Session Laws, Chapter 63 — H.F. No. 100 (the “Act”), which is comprehensive
legislation relating to cannabis including establishing the Office of Cannabis
Management (“OCM?”), legalizing and limiting the possession and use of cannabis and
certain hemp products by adults, providing for the licensing, inspection, and regulation
of cannabis and hemp businesses, taxing the sale of cannabis and certain hemp
products, establishing grant and loan programs, amending criminal penalties, providing
for expungement of certain convictions, and providing for the temporary regulation of
edible cannabinoid products as further defined by Minnesota Statutes § 151.72,
subdivision 1(f) (“Edible Cannabinoid Products”).

The Act provides cities with certain authority related to cannabis businesses as defined by
Minnesota Statutes § 342.01, subdivision 14 (“Cannabis Businesses”).

Specifically the Act allows cities to (i) require local registration of certain Cannabis
Businesses operating retail establishments, (ii) adopt reasonable restrictions on the time,
place, and manner of the operation of Cannabis Businesses, provided that such restrictions
do not prohibit the establishment or operation of a Cannabis Business, (iii) limit the
number of certain Cannabis Businesses based on the population of the community, and
(iv) prohibit the operation of a Cannabis Business within 1,000 feet of a school, or 500
feet of a day care, residential treatment facility, or an attraction within a public park that
is regularly used by minors, including a playground or athletic field.

The Act requires the OCM, to work with local governments to develop model
ordinances for reasonable restrictions on the time, place, and manner of the operation
of Cannabis Businesses. The Act also requires the OCM to establish additional rules
and regulations relating to the operation of Cannabis Businesses. It is anticipated that
the City of Columbus (the “City”) will benefit from reviewing and analyzing the
OCM’s model ordinances, rules and regulations before making any decisions related
to the regulation of Cannabis Businesses in the City.



(E) The Act (Minnesota Statutes, § 342.13(e) expressly allows a local unit of government
that is conducting studies or has authorized a study to be conducted or has held or
scheduled a hearing for the purpose of considering adoption or amendment of
reasonable restrictions on the time, place and manner of the operation of Cannabis
Businesses to adopt an interim ordinance applicable to all or part of its jurisdiction for
the purpose of protecting the planning process and the health, safety, and welfare of its
citizens. The interim ordinance may regulate, restrict or prohibit the operation of a
Cannabis Business within the city until January 1, 2025.

(F) The City desires to adopt an interim ordinance for the purpose of protecting the
planning process and the health, safety, and welfare of its citizens.

(G) The City desires to conduct a study for the purpose of considering the adoption
or amendment of reasonable restrictions on the time, place and manner of the operation
of Cannabis Businesses as well as the other regulations local units of government may
adopt under the Act.

(H) On August 2, 2023, at a properly noticed joint meeting of the City Council and the
Planning Commission, the City Council called for a public hearing and directed staff
to bring forward an interim ordinance for its consideration at its next meeting.

()  On August 9, 2023 the City Council held a public hearing regarding the consideration
and adoption of an interim ordinance prohibiting the operation of Cannabis Businesses
within the City until January 1, 2025.

SECTION 2. STUDY AUTHORIZED.

The City Council hereby authorizes and directs City staff to conduct a study regarding the
adoption or amendment of reasonable restrictions on the time, place, and manner of the operation
of Cannabis Businesses, as well as other potential local regulations allowed under the Act, and
report to the City Council on the potential regulation of Cannabis Businesses. The study may
include a review of model ordinances that OCM is directed to draft under Minnesota Statutes, 8
342.13(d), an analysis of potential setback regulations allowed under Minnesota Statues, 8
342.13(c), and such other matters as staff may determine are relevant to the City Council’s
consideration of this matter. The report may also include recommendations on whether the City
Council should adopt regulations and, if so, the recommended types of regulation.

SECTION 3. MORATORIUM.

A moratorium is hereby imposed on the operation of any Cannabis Business within the City. During
the term of this Ordinance, no business, person, or entity may establish or operate a Cannabis Business
within the jurisdictional boundaries of the City. Accordingly, during the period that this Ordinance is
in effect, the City shall not accept, process, or act on any application, site plan, building permit, zoning
request, or other approval, including any requested confirmation, certification, approval, or other
request from the OCM or other governmental entity requesting City review of any application or
proposal for a business proposing to engage in the operation of a Cannabis Business. During the term



of the moratorium, it is a violation of this Ordinance for any business, person, or entity to establish or
operate a Cannabis Business within the City.

SECTION 4. EXCEPTIONS.

The moratorium imposed by this Ordinance does not apply to the sale of Edible Cannabinoid
Products authorized by the Legislature in its 2022 session, provided, however, that nothing in this
Ordinance exempts a business, person, or entity from complying with all other requirements and
prohibitions of applicable laws and ordinances related to such exceptions.

SECTION 5. ENFORCEMENT.

Violation of this Ordinance is a misdemeanor. The City may also enforce this Ordinance by
mandamus, injunction, or other appropriate civil remedy in any court of competent jurisdiction. A
violation of this Ordinance may further result in the City reporting violations to the OCM, if
relevant to OCM licensing. The City Council hereby authorizes City staff to consult with the City
Attorney to initiate any legal action deemed necessary to secure compliance with this Ordinance.

SECTION 6. SEVERABILITY.

Every section, provision, and part of this Ordinance is declared severable from every other section
provision, and part. If any section, provision, or part of this Ordinance is held to be invalid by a
court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment shall not invalidate any other section, provision, or
part of this Ordinance.

SECTION 7. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM.
This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption by the City Council on August 9, 2023.

Unless earlier rescinded by the City Council, this Ordinance shall remain in effect until January 1,
2025, or until the City Council expressly repeals it.

Jesse H. Preiner, Mayor

ATTEST:

Elizabeth Mursko, City Administrator

Published in the Forest Lake Times on , 2023




RCWD RECEIVED

@E{ RICE CREEK WATERSHED DISTRICT JUL 31 203
July 26, 2023 City of Columbus

The Honorable Jesse Preiner and Council Members

City of Columbus
16319 Kettle River Blvd NE
Columbus, MN 55025

Dear Mayor Preiner and Council Members:

The City of Columbus (“City”) has requested that the Rice Creek Watershed District (“District”) enter into
an agreement for the purpose of reserving wetland bank credits for the City’s use. The District Board of
Managers (“Board”) has reviewed that request and has concluded there is an insufficient basis to enter
into such an agreement.

First, the terms upon which an agreement would be based have never been presented to the District.
Second, while there may have been a basis to grant the City some access to wetland credits at the time
the issue was discussed in 2009, since then, the District has conducted a number of projects beneficial to
the City. Those projects used far more wetland credits than the City potentially would have requested in
2009. Third, any request by the City for wetland credits funded by the District would need to be
consistent with the District’'s Water Management Plan.

The City’s request cites to an October 15, 2009 memorandum of understanding (MOU) signed by the
City, the District, Anoka and Washington Counties, and the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources
(MnDNR). The MOU, in turn, followed a conference among these parties, as well as the City of Forest
Lake and the Minnesota Department of Transportation, that occurred on September 22, 2009. The April
6, 2023 letter from Bill Griffith, City attorney, on behalf of the City attached the facilitator’s minutes of
that conference, which are quite detailed. The conference sought to coordinate among the parties
certain actions necessary to proceed on several public projects, including improvements of County Roads
83 and 23 by, respectively, Washington and Anoka Counties, District repair of Anoka County Ditch (ACD)
15 and Judicial Ditch (JD) 4, and MnDNR land transactions in administration of its Wildlife Management
Area (WMA) holdings.

Mr. Griffith presented the City’s request for an MOU at the Board’s April 26, 2023 regular meeting, which
was attended by several of you and by the City Administrator. Mr. Griffith wrote again on June 27, 2023
to follow up that discussion. District Board members have reviewed the relevant documents, and other
contemporaneous materials. With the input of the District administrator, engineer and counsel, the
Board discussed the matter at its July 10, 2023 workshop, and its July 26, 2023 regular meeting.

The Board finds that the events of 2009 produced no specific understanding between the City and the

District as to wetland credits, and no specific District commitment to make credits available to the City.
More specifically:

4325 Pheasant Ridge Drive NE #611 | Blaine, MN 55449 | T: 763-398-3070 | F: 763-398-3088 | www.ricecreek.org

BOARD OF Jess Robertson Steven P. Wagamon Michael J. Bradley Marcie Weinandt John J. Waller
MANAGERS Anoka County Anoka County Ramsey County Ramsey County Washington County



e To our knowledge, the only representation made, or document signed, with authority of the
Board is the MOU referenced above. The MOU was not a legally binding document, but simply a
statement of the parties” mutual, good faith intent. And the MOU, notably, is silent on the
subject of a District wetland bank or a City interest in obtaining credits from such a bank.

e In the conference minutes, the facilitator and the District administrator, Doug Thomas, do cite a
City interest in credits from a wetland bank the District might construct. But there was, as well,
ample reference to other benefits the City expected from the projects being discussed, including
flood reduction for certain land within the City, improving developable land within the City, and
maintaining WMA access. To the extent we consider the conference to have created, even
informally, mutual commitments between the City and District, the minutes suggest there were
other definite benefits to the City expected from the projects in question, to justify the limited
role the City was asked to play to allow those projects to move forward.

e Nowhere, then or now, is there any detail as to: (1) how many credits the City is requesting; (2)
the meaning of the term “reserve”; (3) the price the City would pay for the credits ; or (4) the
purpose for which the credits may be used.

Nor is it possible to evaluate the City’s current request based on the conditions as they existed in 2009.
The goal of the City as referenced in 2009 appears to have been to obtain a benefit from the Brown'’s
Preserve wetland bank that the District contemplated creating using land that the MnDNR was to sell to
the District. The District created the Brown’s Preserve using District resources, including District-wide ad
valorem taxes, with no contribution from the City. The bank produced 60.86 credits, and the District has
used 20.56 of these to date. Of these 20.56 credits, 18.23 were used for the repair of public drainage
systems JD 4, ACD 15, ACD 10-22-32 and ACD 46, all partially or wholly within the City. Using those
credits allowed the District to repair these ditches at a lower cost to the residents of the City and
provided the City significant economic development opportunities. These 18.23 credits have provided
the City with a substantial financial benefit.

If the City, either now or in the future, brings a specific request to use wetland credits from the Brown’s
Preserve bank, the District would, in good faith, evaluate that request considering at least the following
criteria: the number of credits requested; the number of credits available; the existing known and
anticipated needs of the District for credits; whether the City is offering to pay market or other value for
the credits; and the purpose for which the credits would be used.

It is a priority of our Board to maintain a strong and cooperative relationship with the City, as with all of
our local units of government and other public partners. The District is always prepared to work
collaboratively with the City to pursue mutual public goals, and to assist the City in ways that lie within
the District’s purposes and authority.

Yours truly, /

President, Board of Managers




	Columbus Ordinances - Use of Cannabis in Public Places (2023).pdf
	1. inhaling, exhaling, or burning, any cannabis product, whether natural or synthetic;
	2. carrying any lighted, heated, or activated cannabis product, whether natural or synthetic, intended for inhalation; or
	3. using an electronic smoking device or hookah.
	1. Recreational areas;
	2. Service areas;
	3. Outdoor dining areas;
	4. Places of employment;
	5. Public event areas; or
	6. Other public places.

	2023-08-09_ORD 23-02 PUB SUM_Chapter 7A Commercial Design Standards.pdf
	Ordinance Publication Summary




